
Los Angeles County Committee on 
School District Organization 

c/o Los Angeles County Office of Education 

9300 Imperial Highway, Downey, CA 90242-2890 

2024 Members 

First Supervisorial District: John Nunez, Vice Chairperson 
John Quintanilla, Chairperson 

Second Supervisorial District: Estefany Castaneda, Charles Davis 
Third Supervisorial District: Ralph Mechur, Barry A. Snell 

Fourth Supervisorial District: Donald LaPlante, Martha Deutsch 
Fifth Supervisorial District: Cherise Moore, Suzan T. Solomon 

At Large: Frank Bostrom

January 4, 2024 

TO: Members of the Los Angeles County Committee 

on School District Organization (County Committee) 

FROM: Octavio Castelo, Secretary 
County Committee 

SUBJECT: Annual Organizational Meeting of the County Committee

Wednesday, January 10, 2024 

The annual organizational meeting of the County Committee will be held at 

10:30 a.m. on Wednesday, January 10, 2024. Please note the later starting time, since 

after the meeting concludes, there will be a luncheon for the County Committee where 

some additional guests may be in attendance. This meeting will be hybrid, with in
person, as well as the online opportunity to participate. Connection information will be 
emailed to you in advance of the meeting. 

Attached is the agenda for the meeting of January 10, 2024. 

If you have questions, please call Dr. Allison Deegan at (562) 922-6336. 

AD/EH:vb 
Attachments 





Los Angeles County Committee on 
School District Organization 

c/o Los Angeles County Office of Edu9ation 
9300 Imperial Highway, Downey, CA 90242-2890 

Agenda No. 1 - Calendar Year 2024 

The agenda is accessible through the LACOE website at the following link: 
https :/ /www .lacoe.edu/CountyCommittee/ Agendas 
Procedures for addressing the County Committee can be found on its website. To request a 
disability-related accommodation under the ADA, please call Ms. Victoria Bernstein at 
(562) 922-6131 at least 24 hours in advance.

For members of the public, use the following phone number to call into the meeting: 
1-669-900-9128
Webinar ID: 861 9810 0117
Passcode: 028856

The public may also view the meeting via the following link:
https://lacoe-edu.zoom.us/j/86198100117?pwd=azZicHY 4b 1 dqc VBqOVVhem8wVi9CUT09
Password: 028856

PUBLIC COMMENT IN ADVANCE: To provide public comment in advance, you may 
also submit written comments or documentation by e-mail to: Bernstein Victoria@lacoe.edu 
or you may record a voicemail with your comments by calling: (562) 922-6131. 
• Any advance public comment or documentation must be submitted no later than 4:00 p.m.
the Wednesday before the scheduled meeting (one week before the meeting date).
• Please include your name, phone number, specific agenda item, and meeting date in your

correspondence.
• Correspondence received shall become part of the administrative record.

County Committee on School District Organization 
Annual Organizational Meeting- Hybrid (In-person, as well as remote online access) 

9300 Imperial Highway, Board Room 
Downey, CA 90242 

January 10, 2024 
10:30 A.M. 

Speaker Item 

Mr. Quintanilla I. CALL TO ORDER - 10:30 A.M.

Mr. Quintanilla II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

I Information 

D Discussion 

A Action 

Notes 

!, D, A 

l, D, A 



Agenda No. 1 Calendar Year 2024, County Committee on School District Organization 
Annual Organizational Meeting of January 10, 2024 
Page 2 

Speaker Item Notes 

Mr. Quintanilla III. ADMINISTER OATHS OF OFFICE l D, A'

Oaths shall be administered to members Mr. Davis, Mr. 
Snell; Ms. Solomon, and Mr. Bostrom. 

Mr. Quintanilla IV. ROLL CALL

Mr. Quintanilla V. ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM !, D, A 

Mr. Quintanilla VI. ORDERING OF THE AGENDA 1, D, 1 

Mr. Quintanilla 1, D,A 

Mr. Quintanilla 
Mr. Nunez 

Chair I, D, A 

Mr. Castelo 

Chair f, D,A 

Chair I, D, A 

Mr. Castelo 

Chair T, D, A 

Mr. Castelo 

Chair I, D, A 

Chair 

VII. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES - _Enclosure 
December 6, 2023 and December 13, 2023

VIII. NOMINATING COMMITTEE FOR NEW 

OFFICERS

The Nominating Committee, comprised of Mr. Nunez
(Chair), Mr. Mechur, and Ms. Solomon, will submit its 
recommendations for chairperson and vice-chairperson for 
2024. The County Committee will vote on the Nominating 
Committee's recommendations. The new officers will 
assume their duties immediately.

IX. COUNTY COMMITTEE COMMUNICATIONS 

The Chair may address Communications.

X. PUBLIC COMMENTS ON OPEN SESSION 

ITEMS

Access for members of the public to observe and offer 
public comment: Connection information was provided to 
the Public for those who wish to remotely attend the 
County Committee meeting as a listener or to make public 
comment. Public comment received by 4:00 p.m. the 
Wednesday before the meeting ( one week before the 
meeting date) becomes part of the administrative record.

XI. ANNOUNCEMENTS

XII. CORRESPONDENCE

XIII. PUBLIC INTEREST ITEMS/ COMMITTEE 

MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS

XIV. CONSENT CALENDAR l D,A

' 









 

 

 Attachment 1 
 

UNAPPROVED MINUTES OF THE 
LOS ANGELES COUNTY COMMITTEE ON SCHOOL DISTRICT ORGANIZATION 

Hybrid Meeting 
December 6, 2023 

County  
Committee Meeting 
December 6, 2023 

The Los Angeles County Committee on School District Organization 
(County Committee) held a hybrid meeting on Wednesday,  
December 6, 2023.The meeting was called to order at 9:35 a.m. by  
Mr. John Quintanilla 
 

 
Members Present  

 
 

In Person 
Frank Bostrom 
Charles Davis 
Martha Deutsch 
Ralph Mechur 
Dr. Cherise Moore (9:48 a.m.) 
John Nunez 
John Quintanilla 
Barry Snell 
 
 
Via Zoom 
Donald LaPlante 
Dr. Cherise Moore (until in-person arrival at  
9:48 a.m.) 
 

 

Staff Present 
 
Octavio Castelo, Secretary 
Dr. Allison Deegan, Staff 
Eric Hass, Staff 
Victoria Bernstein, Staff 
Angel Rocha-Cienega, Staff 
 
Item Description 

 
Call to Order Mr. John Quintanilla called the County Committee meeting to order at 

9:35 a.m. 
 

Pledge of Allegiance Mr. Frank Bostrom led the flag salute. 
 



2 

 

Roll Call 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Roll call was conducted. Attendance is as follows: 
 
Mr. Frank Bostrom Yes Dr. Cherise Moore Yes 
Ms. Estefany Castaneda Absent Mr. John Nunez Yes 
Mr. Charles Davis Yes Mr. Barry Snell Yes 
Ms. Martha Deutsch Yes Ms. Suzan Solomon Absent 
Mr. Donald LaPlante Yes Mr. John Quintanilla Yes 
Mr. Ralph Mechur Yes   

 

Establishment of 
Quorum 
 

Quorum was established. 
 

Ordering of the 
Agenda 
 

The ordering of the agenda stands. No recommendations to reorder the 
agenda were received.  

Approval of Minutes of 
October4, 2023, 
October 25, 2023, 
November 1, 2023, 
November 6, 2023, and 
November 9, 2023. 

It was MOVED by Mr. Bostrom and SECONDED by Mr. Nunez. Votes 
are as follows: 
 
Mr. Frank Bostrom Yes Dr. Cherise Moore Yes 
Ms. Estefany Castaneda Absent Mr. John Nunez Yes 
Mr. Charles Davis Yes Mr. Barry Snell Yes 
Ms. Martha Deutsch Yes Ms. Suzan Solomon Absent 
Mr. Donald LaPlante Yes Mr. John Quintanilla Yes 
Mr. Ralph Mechur Yes   

 

Adjourn to Closed 
Session 

It was MOVED by Mr. Nunez and SECONDED by Mr. Bostrom. Votes 
are as follows: 
 
Mr. Frank Bostrom Yes Dr. Cherise Moore Yes 
Ms. Estefany Castaneda Absent Mr. John Nunez Yes 
Mr. Charles Davis Yes Mr. Barry Snell Yes 
Ms. Martha Deutsch Yes Ms. Suzan Solomon Absent 
Mr. Donald LaPlante Yes Mr. John Quintanilla Yes 
Mr. Ralph Mechur Yes   

 

Public Comments on 
Closed Session Items 

Mr. Kevin Shenkman, resident of Malibu, commented in-person about the 
lawsuit which the Santa Monica-Malibu Unified School District (USD) 
has against the County Committee pertaining to the signatory petition 
filed by two residents about changing SMMUSD’s election system. 

Closed Session Ms. Cervera, County Counsel, stated the County Committee received 
advice from counsel and took no reportable action. 

County Committee 
Communications 

Mr. Hass reported on the three communications received regarding the 
SMMUSD. 

Public Comments on 
Open Session Items 

There are no speakers for open session non-agenized items. 



3 

 

Announcements Mr. Castelo reminded everyone of the January 10, 2023 County 
Committee meeting and luncheon. 
 

Correspondence None at this time.   

Public Interest 
Items/Committee 
Member 
Announcements 

None at this time.   

Consent Calendar None at this time. 
 

Presentations None at this time 

Reports/Study Topics Dr. Deegan reported that the policy subcommittee will be continuing its 
review of proposed policy changes and may incorporate further changes 
to the new policy regarding city charter school district trustee area 
petitions from earlier this year, as well as studying the implementation of 
the new law signed by the governor about trustee area petitions and 
redistricting. 

Recommendations None at this time. 

Hearings None at this time. 

Informational Items 
 
A. Update on a 
Petition to Implement 
Trustee Area Voting in 
the Santa Monica 
Malibu Unified School 
District (SMMUSD) 
 

A. Dr. Deegan provided an update, informing the County Committee 
that further polling of possible public hearing dates for the 
petition are pending. 
 
-Public Comment: 
 
Mr. Kevin Shenkman, speaking on behalf of the two resident 
Chief Petitioners, addressed the County Committee on this agenda 
item. 



4 

 

Informational Items 
 
B. Update on a 
Petition to form a 
Malibu USD from 
Territory within the 
SMMUSD 
 

B. Dr. Deegan reported that legal representatives of the SMMUSD 
and governing board members of the SMMUSD who have 
addressed the County Committee assert that they cannot process 
both petitions at the same time. 
 
Public Comment: 
 
Mr. Soldani, legal counsel for the SMMUSD, stated that all 
parties have met and continue to work through components of the 
revenue sharing agreement. He stated that should the unification 
hearing process move forward in January, it will remove the 
ability to effectively engage constituents and start the special 
legislation process which will result in a delay to unification 
implementation. 
 
Ms. Wood, legal counsel for the City of Malibu, stated that the 
city recognizes the district’s position that to move forward on the 
CVRA Hearings in January means that the district could no longer 
focus on the unification petition. The city is not happy with the 
idea that unification would have to go on hold for another year 
and would very much like to see unification continue to proceed 
with the progress it has been making. 
 
Mr. Shenkman stated that the two resident Chief Petitioners 
believe there is time for the SMMUSD to do their public outreach. 
 
Mr. Davis requested clarification on the public hearings that have 
been had and need to be had. 
 
Dr. Deegan addressed differences between the hearings as they 
pertain to the two different petitions involving the SMMUSD. 
 

Informational Items 
 
C. Petition to 
Implement Trustee 
Areas and Trustee 
Area Voting in the 
Paramount USD 
 

C. Mr. Hass indicated the petition from Paramount USD was 
received on November 15, 2023 and there will be a public hearing 
at the district on December 13, 2023, at 6:00 PM. 

Informational Items 
 
D. California Voting 
Rights Act 
 

D. Mr. Hass provided an update regarding the City of Burbank and its 
process regarding possibly implementing trustee areas and trustee 
area voting like the Burbank USD has recently done, but the city is 
now exploring whether cumulative voting would be an option. The 
California Secretary of State has said that is not a tenable election 
methodology at this time. Updates about activity in locales outside 
of Los Angeles County were provided. 

 
 



5 

 

Informational Items 
 
E. Legislative Update 
 

E. Mr. Hass mentioned there are three bills that may be of interest if 
they proceed. 

Informational Items 
 
F. Update on Los 
Angeles USD 
(LAUSD) 
Reorganization 
Proposals 
 

F. None at this time 

 

G. Update on  Los 
Angeles County 
Reorganization 
Proposals Excluding 
Those Affecting the 
LAUSD 
 

G.  None at this time 
 

H. County Committee 
Communications, 
Meeting, Schedule, 
Establishment of 
Meeting Times, Future 
Agenda Items, Follow 
Up 

H. Mr. Quintanilla gave a reminder of the Public Hearing at 
Paramount USD on December 13, 2023 and January’s County 
Committee meeting will be at 10:30 AM on January 10th not 
January 3rd to accommodate the holidays.  He asked members to 
please RSVP. 

Adjournment It was MOVED by Dr. Moore and SECONDED by Mr. Bostrom. Votes 
are as follows: 
 
Mr. Frank Bostrom Yes Dr. Cherise Moore Yes 
Ms. Estefany Castaneda Absent Mr. John Nunez Yes 
Mr. Charles Davis Yes Mr. Barry Snell Yes 
Ms. Martha Deutsch Yes Ms. Suzan Solomon Absent 
Mr. Donald LaPlante Yes Mr. John Quintanilla Yes 
Mr. Ralph Mechur Yes   

 
 

 
 



 

 

 Attachment 1 
 

UNAPPROVED MINUTES OF THE 
LOS ANGELES COUNTY COMMITTEE ON SCHOOL DISTRICT ORGANIZATION 

Hybrid Meeting 
December 13, 2023 

County Committee 
Special Meeting 
December 13, 2023 

The Los Angeles County Committee on School District Organization 
(County Committee) held a hybrid meeting on Wednesday,  
December 13, 2023. The meeting was called to order at 6:10 p.m. by  
Mr. John Quintanilla 
 

 
Members Present  

 
 

In Person 
Frank Bostrom 
Charles Davis 
Martha Deutsch 
Donald LaPlante 
Ralph Mechur 
John Nunez 
John Quintanilla 
 

 

Staff Present 
 
Octavio Castelo, Secretary 
April Mitchell, Staff 
Dr. Allison Deegan, Staff 
Eric Hass, Staff 
Angel Rocha-Cienega, Staff 
 
Item Description 

 
Call to Order Mr. Quintanilla called the County Committee meeting to order at 6:10 p.m. 

 
Pledge of Allegiance Mr. Mechur led the flag salute. 

 
Roll Call 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Roll call was conducted.  Attendance is as follows: 
 
Mr. Frank Bostrom Yes Dr. Cherise Moore Absent 
Ms. Estefany Castaneda Absent Mr. John Nunez Yes 
Mr. Charles Davis Yes Mr. Barry Snell Absent 
Ms. Martha Deutsch Yes Ms. Suzan Solomon Absent 
Mr. Donald LaPlante Yes Mr. John Quintanilla Yes 
Mr. Ralph Mechur Yes   

 

Establishment of 
Quorum 
 

Quorum was established. 
 



2 

 

Public Comments on 
Open Session Items 

There are no speakers for open session non-agenized items. 

Temporarily Adjourn 
Special Meeting 

It was MOVED by Mr. Bostrom and SECONDED by Mr. Davis. Votes 
are as follows: 
 
Mr. Frank Bostrom Yes Dr. Cherise Moore Absent 
Ms. Estefany Castaneda Absent Mr. John Nunez Yes 
Mr. Charles Davis Yes Mr. Barry Snell Absent 
Ms. Martha Deutsch Yes Ms. Suzan Solomon Absent 
Mr. Donald LaPlante Yes Mr. John Quintanilla Yes 
Mr. Ralph Mechur Yes   

 

Convening of Public 
Hearing 

Mr. Quintanilla called the public hearing to order at 6:12 p.m. 
 

Hearing on a Proposal 
to Establish Trustee 
Areas and Trustee 
Area Voting Within the 
Paramount Unified 
School District (USD) 

Mr. Hass explained the purpose of the proposal and process, and the role 
of the County Committee. 

Paramount Unified School District gave their presentation. 
- No public comments from proponents 
- No public comments from opponents 

Adjournment of Public 
Hearing 

It was MOVED by Mr. Bostrom and SECONDED by Mr. Davis. Votes 
are as follows: 
 
Mr. Frank Bostrom Yes Dr. Cherise Moore Absent 
Ms. Estefany Castaneda Absent Mr. John Nunez Yes 
Mr. Charles Davis Yes Mr. Barry Snell Absent 
Ms. Martha Deutsch Yes Ms. Suzan Solomon Absent 
Mr. Donald LaPlante Yes Mr. John Quintanilla Yes 
Mr. Ralph Mechur Yes   

 

Reconvening of Special 
Meeting 

Mr. Quintanilla reconvened the special meeting to order at 6:40 p.m. 
 

Presentation of the 
Feasibility Study 

Dr. Deegan presented the feasibility study. 
 
Committee Members asked questions and requested clarifications from the 
district’s representatives and staff. 

Approval of Petition to 
Establish Trustee 
Areas and Trustee 
Area Voting Within the 
Paramount USD 

It was MOVED by Mr. Davis and SECONDED by Ms. Deutsch to 
approve the petition. Motion carried, votes are: 
 
Mr. Frank Bostrom Yes Dr. Cherise Moore Absent 
Ms. Estefany Castaneda Absent Mr. John Nunez Yes 
Mr. Charles Davis Yes Mr. Barry Snell Absent 
Ms. Martha Deutsch Yes Ms. Suzan Solomon Absent 
Mr. Donald LaPlante Yes Mr. John Quintanilla Yes 
Mr. Ralph Mechur Yes   

 



3 

 

Approval of Scenario 4 
Map 

It was MOVED by Mr. Davis and SECONDED by Mr. Nunez to approve 
the map. Motion carried, votes are: 
 
Mr. Frank Bostrom Yes Dr. Cherise Moore Absent 
Ms. Estefany Castaneda Absent Mr. John Nunez Yes 
Mr. Charles Davis Yes Mr. Barry Snell Absent 
Ms. Martha Deutsch Yes Ms. Suzan Solomon Absent 
Mr. Donald LaPlante Yes Mr. John Quintanilla Yes 
Mr. Ralph Mechur Yes   

 

Approval of District’s 
Request to Eliminate 
Voter Approval 
Requirement Under Ed 
Code 5020 

It was MOVED by Mr. Nunez and SECONDED by Mr. Mechur. Votes 
are as follows: 
 
Mr. Frank Bostrom Yes Dr. Cherise Moore Absent 
Ms. Estefany Castaneda Absent Mr. John Nunez Yes 
Mr. Charles Davis Yes Mr. Barry Snell Absent 
Ms. Martha Deutsch Yes Ms. Suzan Solomon Absent 
Mr. Donald LaPlante Yes Mr. John Quintanilla Yes 
Mr. Ralph Mechur Yes   

 

Adjournment It was MOVED by Mr. Bostrom and SECONDED by Mr. Davis. Votes 
are as follows: 
 
Mr. Frank Bostrom No Dr. Cherise Moore Absent 
Ms. Estefany Castaneda Absent Mr. John Nunez Yes 
Mr. Charles Davis Yes Mr. Barry Snell Absent 
Ms. Martha Deutsch Yes Ms. Suzan Solomon Absent 
Mr. Donald LaPlante Yes Mr. John Quintanilla Yes 
Mr. Ralph Mechur Yes   

 

 
 





































Legislative Update 
January 10, 2024 
Page 4 

AMENDMENTS REQUIRED 

If staffs recommended position is based on the need for amendments to the bill language, 
suggested alternative language is attached. 

CORRESPONDENCE REQUIRED 

If staffs recommended position is based on the need for correspondence to the bill's author, 
the Governor or other governmental officials, a draft of suggested language is attached. 

Please ;direct all comments to Mr. Octavio Castelo, Secretary to the County Committee 
at (562) 922-6131. 



















































 

 

Long Beach 
555 E. Ocean Blvd, Ste. 420 

Long Beach, CA  90802 

Sacramento 
555 Capitol Mall, Ste. 400 
Sacramento, CA  95814 

Oakland 
1901 Harrison St., Ste. 1550 

Oakland, CA 94612 
 

Olson Remcho LLP olsonremcho.com 
 

 
December 11, 2023 
 
 
 
VIA EMAIL 
 
Fredric Woocher 
fwoocher@strumwooch.com 

Douglas Sloan 
douglas.sloan@santamonica.gov 
 

Kevin I. Shenkman 
shenkman@sbcglobal.net 

Michelle Marie Hugard 
michelle.hugard@santamonica.gov 

Re: Public Hearing Dates for Review of SMMUSD TAV Petition 

Dear Counsel: 

Thank you for your October 30 and November 29 letters and November 21 email 
correspondence regarding the hearings on the petition to establish trustee area voting within 
the Santa Monica-Malibu Unified School District (“SMMUSD TAV Petition”).  We are writing to 
inform you of the dates for two public hearings during which the County Committee will review 
the petition.  
 
To this point, the County Committee has accommodated the parties’ requests to delay the 
SMMUSD TAV Hearings out of deference.  But the SMMUSD TAV Petition has been pending 
since January 2022, and it has been nearly a year since the Superior Court instructed the parties 
to move forward with the hearings as required by Section 5019 of the Education Code.  The 
Committee is also mindful that deadlines for the November 2024 SMMUSD elections are 
approaching and that its decision on the SMMUSD TAV petition may impact those elections.   
 
For that reason, the Committee now sets the following dates for the first hearings on the TAV 
Petition: 
 

• Wednesday, January 31, 2024, at 6:00 p.m., and 
• Saturday, February 10, 2024, at 9:30 a.m.  

 
You may recall that the County Committee requested at least one Saturday hearing date, and 
that each of the required hearings be conducted in two sessions, one in Malibu and then one in 
Santa Monica, to accommodate the large number of participants expected.  The locations of 
the hearings will be determined in the next several days and all parties will be notified. 
 
The hearings on these dates will consider only the map provided in the SMMUSD TAV Petition 
and its conformity with statutory requirements.  Although the Committee’s original policy 
contemplated that the first hearings would focus on evidence of racially polarized voting, vote 

mailto:fwoocher@strumwooch.com
mailto:douglas.sloan@santamonica.gov
mailto:shenkman@sbcglobal.net
mailto:Michelle.hugard@santamonica.gov


 
 
Fredric Woocher 
Douglas Sloan 
Kevin I. Shenkman 
Michelle Marie Hugard 
December 11, 2023 
Page 2 
 
dilution, and furthering the purposes of the California Voting Rights Act, and that the second 
hearings would focus on the proposed map, the Committee has decided to reverse that order in 
light of passage of Assembly Bill 764. 
 
Per the Committee’s policy, pre-hearing submissions are due at 4:00 p.m. fifteen (15) days 
before the first hearing.  To facilitate the Committee’s review, please tailor your submissions to 
the subject matter of these hearings.   
 
The Committee looks forward to receiving any materials and to your participation in the 
Committee’s hearings on the TAV Petition.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Kristen Mah Rogers 
 
KMR:NL 
(00501448-2) 





 

 

Long Beach 
555 E. Ocean Blvd, Ste. 420 

Long Beach, CA  90802 

Sacramento 
555 Capitol Mall, Ste. 400 
Sacramento, CA  95814 

Oakland 
1901 Harrison St., Ste. 1550 

Oakland, CA 94612 

 
Olson Remcho LLP olsonremcho.com 

 
January 3, 2024 

 
 
VIA EMAIL 
 
Fredric D. Woocher 
Strumwasser & Woocher LLP 
10940 Wilshire Boulevard, Suite 2000 
Los Angeles, CA  90024 
fwoocher@strumwooch.com 

Re:  First Public Hearings for Review of SMMUSD TAV Petition 

Dear Mr. Woocher: 

Thank you for your December 19, 2023 correspondence regarding the first hearings on the 
petition to establish trustee area voting within the Santa Monica‐Malibu Unified School District 
(“SMMUSD TAV Petition”).  As we noted in our December 11, 2023 correspondence, those 
hearings will be held on the following dates: 
 

 Wednesday, January 31, 2024, at 6:00 p.m., and 

 Saturday, February 10, 2024, at 9:30 a.m.  
 
The purpose of this letter is to respond to your request for clarity on the subject of these 
hearings.  As we stated previously, during these two hearings the Committee will focus only on 
whether the map provided in the SMMUSD TAV Petition conforms to statutory requirements 
given the recent passage of Assembly Bill 764.  These hearings will not focus on matters outside 
that scope, such as whether there is evidence of racially polarized voting and vote dilution, and 
whether the SMMUSD TAV Petition furthers the purposes of the California Voting Rights Act 
(“CVRA”) or whether the SMMUSD TAV Petition map is an appropriate remedy for vote dilution. 
 
Following these hearings, the Committee may elect to proceed with further hearings as 
provided in its Policy for Public Hearings Involving City Charter School Districts to consider 
whether the SMMUSD TAV Petition will further the purposes of the CVRA and whether the 
proposed map is an appropriate remedy for any vote dilution that has been established.  If so, 
interested parties and the public will be provided additional time to prepare further 
submissions.  But given the recent statutory changes under Assembly Bill 764, the Committee  
   



 
 
Fredric D. Woocher 
January 3, 2024 
Page 2 
 
has determined that these initial hearings should focus only on the legality of the proposed 
SMMUSD TAV Petition map.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Kristen Mah Rogers 
 
KMR:NL 
(00502472‐3) 

 
cc:  Kevin I. Shenkman, shenkman@sbcglobal.net 
  Michelle Marie Hugard, michelle.hugard@santamonica.gov 
  Douglas Sloan, douglas.sloan@santamonica.gov 
  Dale Larson, dlarson@strumwooch.com 
  Lance H. Olson, lolson@olsonremcho.com 

Michelle Cervera, MCervera@counsel.lacounty.gov 
Robin B. Johansen, rjohansen@olsonremcho.com 
Allison Deegan, Ed.D, Deegan_Allison@lacoe.edu 
Octavio Castelo, Castelo_Octavio@lacoe.edu 
Eric Hass, Hass_Eric@lacoe.edu 
April Mitchell, Mitchell_April@lacoe.edu 
David A. Soldani, DSoldani@aalrr.com 






